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42,575 4,550 108.27 11,571
2010 12
30,408 3,250 98.99 10,579
2011 12
21,281 2,274 103.95 11,109
2012 12
10
26,811 2,865 108.32 11,576
2013 12
11
40,037 4,279 100.70 10,762
2014 12
12
27,379 2,926 99.58 10,642
2015 12
13
22,699 2,426 99.08 10,589
2016 12
14
19,102 2,041 104.23 11,139
2017 12
15
16,322 1,744 96.83 10,348
2018 12
16
15,005 1,604 107.50 11,489
2019 12
2019 15,959 1,706 101.27 10,823
15,925 1,702 102.82 10,988
15,143 1,618 102.64 10,969
15,006 1,604 101.40 10,837
15,039 1,607 102.40 10,943
10 15,126 1,617 103.21 11,030
11 15,214 1,626 105.05 11,227
12 15,005 1,604 107.50 11,489
2020 15,160 1,620 110.28 11,786
12,084 1,291 109.46 11,698
10,407 1,112 94.26 10,074
11,156 1,192 100.31 10,720
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2011 12
2,824 328 103.46 12,001
2012 12
10
1,656 192 107.50 12,470
2013 12
11
1,432 166 100.21 11,624
2014 12
12
1,434 166 98.66 11,445
2015 12
13
1,389 161 96.51 11,195
2016 12
14
2,612 303 100.59 11,668
2017 12
15
2,195 255 93.16 10,807
2018 12
16
2,382 276 99.99 11,599
2019 12
2019 2,284 265 96.00 11,136
2,345 272 97.20 11,275
2,334 271 96.75 11,223
2,300 267 95.34 11,059
2,345 272 96.01 11,137
10 2,356 273 96.48 11,192
11 2,395 278 98.06 11,375
12 2,382 276 99.99 11,599
2020 2,437 283 102.31 11,868
2,415 280 101.37 11,759
2,138 248 89.69 10,404
2,242 260 95.34 11,059
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14,084 984 110.17 7,694
2010 12
12,459 870 102.82 7,181
2011 12
14,741 1,030 106.76 7,456
2012 12
10
8,063 563 111.30 7,773
2013 12
11
10,168 710 103.53 7,231
2014 12
12
14,812 1,034 102.70 7,173
2015 12
13
25,679 1,793 101.17 7,066
2016 12
14
15,148 1,058 104.40 7,291
2017 12
15
12,879 899 96.18 6,717
2018 12
16
12,068 843 105.19 7,346
2019 12
2019 12,346 862 100.06 6,988
12,451 870 101.48 7,087
12,288 858 101.15 7,064
11,816 825 99.75 6,967
11,887 830 100.61 7,027
10 11,847 827 101.23 7,070
11 11,867 829 102.94 7,189
12 12,068 843 105.19 7,346
2020 12,350 863 107.80 7,529
12,196 852 106.86 7,463
10,937 764 92.04 6,428
11,336 792 97.57 6,814
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2013 12
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414 10,014
2014 12
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368 9,866
2015 12
13
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2016 12
14
201 10,110
2017 12
15
175 9,398
2018 12
16
185 10,130
2019 12
2019 179 9,702
181 9,824
180 9,779
177 9,642
178 9,713
10 179 9,768
11 181 9,934
12 185 10,130
2020 190 10,371
172 10,277
149 9,064
158 9,619
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2010 12
4.00 464
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350 350
6.50 695
6.00 696
2011 2011
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550 550
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2012
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2012
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2012 12
1.00 116
2012
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100 100
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2013
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10
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2013
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2013 12
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2013
6.00 419
450 450
3.50 374
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2014
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11
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2014
3.00 321
2014 12
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2015 12
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13
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2016 12
0 0

51/214



EDINETOOOO
OO00000000000000O(E14951)
ooooodoooioooooodod

0.00 0
0.00 0
2017
1.50 105
14
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2017
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2017 12
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2018 12
0.00 0
2018
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16
2019
2019 12
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17
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2020 2020
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2020
200 200
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2019
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2020
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65.77 7,029
48.43 5,618
2004 13
86.41 6,035
2020
3,953 3,953

52/214



EDINETOOOO
OO00000000000000O(E14951)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

7.53

2.57

9.56
10 10.94
11 1.03
12 1.11
13 0.50
14 6.71
15 4.22
16 11.02

100x a b b

7.23

2.84

9.10
10 10.67
11 1.20
12 1.55
13 2.18
14 4.23
15 7.39
16 7.33

53/214



EDINETOOOO
OO00000000000000O(E14951)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10.97

0.59

12.59

10 13.62

11 1.11

12 0.65

13 0.03

14 6.65

15 5.00

16 9.37
7.20

2.94

9.19

10 11.00

11 1.41

12 1.48

13 1.95

14 4.51

15 7.04

16 7.79

54/214



EDINETOOOO
O000000000000000(E14951)
OooOooooOoooooooooboood

HEIRS SAEBIES

(%]
80

40

8888

0 753, B, 10585 BTI% 10.02%

10 28T - 1.0%F% 1.1 18 el A% Ty

o

888

20108 2001 14 202§ 201345 201485 2015%F 201 GE 20174 2018 20155 20206

A-ORSABRRIES

19

7.23% 8, o 10687% T.aT%

2 =1 .20% 1 55% 2 1 -?-ﬂi“ -2.16%

E88Eoo88583

20108 201 1 20128 20138 2014 2015% 20168 20174 2018¢ 2015% 2020
BRIV SABSIES

%)
&0
=)
40
2
10.97%: T 5 1382%
13._._-“5“.-.--1-"“".%- —_.__L
10 A0 A0 -Rg
20
%
20107 20114 20l2E  2013E 20148 20155 2016 2017 2018 20160 20206
Mo S B
(%%,
[}

40

7 20%, & 1'h 00

5885058888

fmn il S |
e - % 1.4 -1.95%. . B0
20100y 2070 16 22a 20134% 20144 20154 20158 201 74 20184 2015840 20201

(ENESER (%) =100%(a—-b). b

a=dEENSFE(BE) FCREMERECESEN DS AR ES (UESHSEE(MS) FraBMosER
(HIlEemOoaHEEN @)

b=HERHFE(EF) ELENMOENOSH FE(EE) *REOBREIF 1 DS OHEETRE (D REESOH)
(F2)2020F 12V TE2020F 1A 18 SRS4RFHETOERETT.

55/214



EDINETOOOO
OO00000000000000O(E14951)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

225,833 96,131 391,101

225,833 96,131 391,101

186,064 269,965 307,200

186,064 269,965 307,200

60,580 163,052 204,728

60,580 163,052 204,728

145,851 103,153 247,426

10 145,851 103,153 247,426
251,411 109,916 388,921

H 251,411 109,916 388,921
41,613 155,589 274,945

2 41,613 155,589 274,945
14,179 60,022 229,102

1 14,179 60,022 229,102
7,461 53,306 183,257

14 7,461 53,306 183,257
23,530 38,225 168,562

o 23,530 38,225 168,562
2,068 31,053 139,577

1o 2,068 31,053 139,577
11,010 6,670 22,463

11,010 6,670 22,463

11,280 10,714 23,029

11,280 10,714 23,029

13,127 8,861 27,295

13,127 8,861 27,295

29,506 41,400 15,401

10 29,506 41,400 15,401
3,139 4,250 14,290

H 3,139 4,250 14,290
3,154 2,904 14,540

12 3,154 2,904 14,540
1,180 1,331 14,389

3 1,180 1,331 14,389
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12,935 1,354 25,970

14 12,935 1,354 25,970
125 2,534 23,561

o 125 2,534 23,561
1,262 1,000 23,823

o 1,262 1,000 23,823
105,410 112,744 127,835

105,410 112,744 127,835

37,083 43,743 121,175

37,083 43,743 121,175

110,668 95,513 136,330

110,668 95,513 136,330

30,533 94,420 72,443

10 30,533 94,420 72,443
49,212 24,446 97,209

H 49,212 24,446 97,209
75,228 28,211 144,226

. 75,228 28,211 144,226
188,756 79,170 253,812

s 188,756 79,170 253,812
19,769 128,482 145,099

1 (19,769 128,482 145,099
12,616 23,810 133,905

o 12,616 23,810 133,905
14,555 33,732 114,728

e 14,555 33,732 114,728
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200 25,483 40,952

200 25,483 40,952

4,642 10,716 34,878

(4,642 10,716 34,878

16,470 14,782 36,566

16,470 14,782 36,566

16,865 7,527 45,904

10 16,865 7,527 45,904
15,805 20,447 41,262

H 15,805 20,447 41,262
0 3,954 37,308

e 0 3,954 37,308
0 16,453 20,855

s 0 16,453 20,855
14 0 1,022 19,833
0 1,022 19,833

1,570 2,765 18,638

o 1,570 2,765 18,638
20 378 18,280

e 20 378 18,280
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3.30
1.65
0.825
0.55
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CB
2019 12 31
( ) «

27,915,071 2,983,284
215,829 23,066
129,367 13,825
28,260,267 3,020,175
190,812 20,392
190,424 20,351
61,548 6,578
60,569 6,473
36,482 3,899
7,197 769
87,213 9,320
634,245 67,782
27,626,022 2,952,393

139,577 107.50 10,830

114,728 105.19 7,346

23,823 99.99 11,599

18,280 10,130
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CB

2019 12 31
( ) « )
(249,983) (26,716)
3,232,799 345,489
2,982,816 318,774
(865,948) (92,544)
188,132 20,106
(677,816) (72,438)
836,098 89,354
(95,450) (10,201)
(61,806) (6,605)
(7,680) (821)
(7,095) (758)
664,067 70,969
(258,571) (27,633)
(152,269) (16,273)
(121,519) (12,987)
(79,983) (8,548)
(28,730) (3,070)
(1,795) (192)
(642,867) (68,703)
21,200 2,266

2,326,200 248,601
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CB

2019 12 31

( ) « )
21,200 2,266
(249,983) (26,716)
3,232,799 345,489
(677,816) (72,438)
2,326,200 248,601
211,810 22,636
1,020,210 109,030
137,081 14,650
1,854 198
(3,188,400) (340,744)
(2,355,987) (251,784)
(109,311) (11,682)
(34,041) (3,638)
(4,316,784) (461,335)
(1,990,584) (212,734)
29,616,606 3,165,127
27,626,022 2,952,393
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( ) « )
2,326,200 248,601
1,853,992 198,136

(79,451) (8,491)
(188,132) (20,106)
1,844 197
190,812 20,392
(8,058) (861)
(1,815) (194)
(4,746) (507)
(895) (96)
37,709 4,030
4,127,460 441,102
1,370,955 146,514
(5,498,415) (587,616)
(4,127,460) (441,102)
1,795 192
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CB
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CB 2004

2004 13

UBS

UBS UBS
UBS AG UBS
UBS
BNY
BNY

ASC 946

GAAP
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2019 12 31 27,915,071
100.00
ASC 815
BNY
2019 12 31

12,753,206
ASC 820

2019 12 31

129,367 ASC 820
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ASC 740

2019 12 31

2019 12 31

0.225 0.90

UBS

0.53
0.55 0.57

0.10

0.12 0.10
0.08 72,000
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168,562 133,905 23,561 18,638
2,068 14,555 1,262 20
(31,053) (33,732) (1,000) (378)
139,577 114,728 23,823 18,280
96.83 96.18 93.16 9,398

0.09 0.07 0.08 8
10.58 8.94 6.75 724
10.67 9.01 6.83 732

107.50 105.19 99.99 10,130
11.02 9.37 7.33 7.79
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2020 30 UFJ
106.87
2019 12 31

( ) «
3,362,069 359,304
1,113,369 1,125,709 120,305
21,887,217 23,491,288 2,510,514
84,874 9,070
190,812 20,392
28,254,752 3,019,585
215,829 23,066
123,852 13,236
339,681 36,302
27,915,071 2,983,284

108,657.14 256.91 27,456
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2019 12 31
( ) « )
(249,983) (26,716)
3,232,799 345,489
2,982,816 318,774
836,098 89,354
836,098 89,354
95,450 10,201
61,806 6,605
7,680 821
7,095 758
172,031 18,385
664,067 70,969

3,646,883 389,742
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( ) « )
664,067 70,969
(249,983) (26,716)
3,232,799 345,489
3,646,883 389,742
1,269,331 135,653
(6,770,206) (723,532)
(5,500,875) (587,879)
(1,853,992) (198,136)
29,769,063 3,181,420
27,915,071 2,983,284




2019 12 31

3,646,883

(19,845,197)
25,868,450
255,821
(3,683,882)
(370, 654)

39,431
11,388
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389,742

(2,120,856)
2,764,561
27,340

(393,696)

(39,612)

4,214
1,217

5,922,240

632,910

1,078,519
(6,690,755)

115,261
(715,041)

(5.612,236)

(599,780)

310,004
4,177,774

33,130
446,479

4,487,778

479,609
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2019 12 31
916,136 3.28
Tesla Inc 2.00% 05/15/2024 1,513,423 5.42
1,034,475 3.71
943,433 3.38
Medicines Company 2.75% 07/15/2023 1,746,250 6.26
3,390,871 12.15
5,137,121 18.41
958,776 3.43
1,006,657 3.61
5,816,462 20.83
15,873,571 17,326,483 62.07
989,033 3.54
1,180,268 4.23
1,980,405 2,169,301 7.77
1,294,925 4.64
1,305,659 4.68
868,640 3.11
3,622,707 3,469,224 12.43
21,476,683 22,965,008 82.27
373,757 1.34
152,523 0.55
410,534 526,280 1.89
410,534 526,280 1.89

27,795,637 23,491,288 84.16
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Nikko Global CB Fund

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
(Stated in United States Dollars)

December 31, 2019

Assels
Investment m Nmeteen?7 Global Comvertible Bond Master Limed

Redemption due from Nineteen77 Global Convertible Bond Master Limied 215829
Met unrealzed gam on forward currency contracts 129,367
Total assets 28.260.267
Liabilities

Subscription due to Nineteen77 Global Convertible Bond Master Limited 190,812
Redemptions payable 190,424
Management fee payable 61,548
Trustee and administration fee payable 6,565
Distributor fee payable 36482
Agent Company fee payable 7197
Accrued expenses 87,213
Total linbilities 634,245
Met assets § 27626022

Net asset value per share

§ 27915071

USD Class (based on 139577 units outstanding) 5 107.50
AUD Class (based on 114,728 uniis outstanding ) AUD  105.19
EUR Class (based on 23,823 units outstanding) € 9999
JPY Class {based on 18,280 units outstanding ) JPY 10,130

See accompanying notes and attached financial statements of Nineteen? 7 Global Convertible Bond Master

Limited,
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Nikko Global CB Fund

Statement of Operations
iStated in United States Dollars)

Year Ended December 31, 2019

Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on investments in
securities and foreign currency allocated from Nineteen77
Global Convertible Bond Mas ter Limited

Met realized loss on nvestments in securities and foreign currency b3 (249933)
Met change in wirealized appreciation/depreciation on investments
m secwurities and foreign curency 3,232,799
Met gain on investmenis in securities and foreign cumency
allocated from Nineteen77 Global Convertible Bond Master Limited 5 2981816

Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on forward currency
contracts and foreign currency

Net realized loss on forward cwrrency contracts and foreign currency (865948)
Met change m unrealized gam/loss on forward cwrency contracts
and foreign currency 188,132
Met loss on forward currency contracts and foreign currency (677.816)

Net investment income (loss) allocated from Nineteen77 Global
Convertible Bond Master Limited

Interest ncome 836,098
Professional fees {95450)
Directors fees and other expenses {61,806)
Interest expense (7.680)
Addministration fees (7.095)
Met investment income allocated from Nineteen77 Global
Convertible Bond Master Limited 664,067
Fund expenses
Management fee (258,571}
Distributor fee (152,269}
Professional fees and other expenses (121,519
Trustee and admirdstration fee {79.983)
Agent Company fee {28,730)
Interest expense (1,795)
Total Fund expenses (642867)
Met mvestment ncome 21,200
Met change in net assets resulting from operations 5 2326200

Bae accompanying notes and attached financial statements of Nineteen? 7 Hobal Converible Bond Master
Limated.
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Nikko Global CB Fund

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
(Stated in United States Daollars)

Year Ended December 31, 2019

Operations
Net mvestment income by 21,200
Met realized loss on investments in securities and foreign currency

allocated from Nineteen77 Global Convertible Bond Master Limited (249,583)
Met change in wirealized appreciation/depreciation on investments in

securities and foreign cwrrency allocated from

Mineteen77 Global Convertible Bond Master Limied 3,232,799
Met loss on forward currency contracts and foreign currency (677.816)
Net change in net assets resulting from operations 2,326,200
Capital unit trans actions
USD Class subscriptions 211510
AUD Class subscriptions 1,020,210
EUR Class subscriptions 137,081
JPY Class subscnptions 1.854
USD Class redemptions (3,188,400}
AUD Class redemptions (2,355,987
EUR Class redemptions (109.311)
JPY Class redemptions (34,041)
Met change in net assets resulting from capital unit transactions (4,316,784)
Met change in net asseis (1,990,584
Net assets at beginning, of year 29,616,606
Met assets at end of year 3 27626022

See accompanying notes and attached financial statements of Nineteen 77 Jlobal Convertible Bond Master
Limited,
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Nikko Global CB Fund

Statement of Cash Flows
(Stated in United States Daollars)

Year Ended December 31, 2019

Operating activities
Net change in net assets resulting from operations ] 2,326,200
Adjustments to reconcik net change in net assets resulting from operations
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Changes in assets and liabilties:

Investment in Ningteen77 Global Convertible B ond Master Limited 1,853,952
Redemption due from Nineteen?7 Global Convertible Bond Master Limited {79451
Wet wnrealized gainloss on forward cumency contracts (188,132)
Other assets 1,844
Subscription due to Nineteen77 Global Convertible Bond Master Limited 190,812
Management fee payable (8,058
Trustee and administration fee payable (1815)
Distributor fee payable (4,746)
Agent Company fee payable (895)
Acerued expenses 37,709
Met cash provided by operating activities 4,127 460

Financing activities

Subscriptions 1,370,955
Redemptions (5498415)
Met cash used in financing activities (4.127.460)

Net change in cash -
Cash at beginming of year -
Cash at end of year 5 -

Supple mentary information
Interest paid 5 1,795

See accompanying notes and attached financial statements of Nineteen 77 (Hobal Convertible Bond Master
Limted.
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Nikko Global CB Fund

MNotes to Financial Statements

Year Ended December 31, 2019
1. Organization

Mikko Global CB Fund (the Fund) is an open-ended exempted trust formed under the trust laws of the
Cayman Islands by a deed of trust dated July 6, 2004, The Fund is regulated as a mutual fund under
the Mutual Funds Law of the Cayman [slands and the Retail Mutual Funds (Japan) Regulations. The
Fund commenced operations on August 13, 2004, The Fund i= a feeder fund in a master-feeder
structure whereby the Fund invests substantially all of its assets in Nineteen77 Global Convertible
Bond Master Limited, (the Master Fund), a company incorporated under the laws of the Cayman
Islands. The Master Fund's investment objective is to invest in a diversified portfolio of intemational
convertible securities. Convertible securities include debt securities, preferred stock and other hybrid
securities which pay current interest or dividends and give the holder the right to exchange the
security for common stock,

The Company’s adviser is UBS O'Comnnor LLC (the Investment Manager), a Delaware limited
liability company, which is registered with the U.5. Securities and Exchange Commission as an
investment adviser. The Investment Manager may use certain personnel of one or more of its affiliates
or engage one or more of its affiliates as sub-advisers to provide investment advice for certain assets
of the Master Fund. The Investment Manager is a wholly-owned subsidiary of UBS Assel
Management (Americas) Inc. UBS Asset Management { Americas) Inc. and any affiliated sub-advisers
are wholly owned subsidiaries of UBS AG (UBS) and are part of UBS Asset Management, which
provides various operational and managerial support services to the Investment Manager.

The Fund’s administrator is BNY Mellon Fund Management {Cayman) Limited {the Administrator),
The Adminisiraior has delegated the administration of the Fund to BNY Mellon Fund Services
{Ireland) Designated Activity Company {the Sub-Administrator). The Sub-Adminisirator provides
certain administrative services to the Fund, including maintenance of the Fund's books and records,
and serves as registrar for the Fund's units. The Administrator also serves as trustee of the Fund (the
Trustee).

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Investment Manager has evaluated the structure, objectives and activities of the Fund and
determined that it meets the characteristics of an inwvestment company. As such, these financial
statements have applied the guidance set forth in Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 946,
Financial Services — fnvestment Companies. The following is a summary of significant accounting
and reporting policies used in preparing the financial statemenis.

Use of Estimates
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepled accounting
principles (GAAP). The preparation of these financial stalements requites management to make

estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes, Actual results could differ from such estimates.
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Nikko Global CB Fund

Motes to Financial Statements (contimued)

Year Ended December 31, 2019
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (confinued)
Investmenis

The Fund's investment in the Master Fund 15 recorded at fair value, which i1s the Fund's interest in the
net assels of the Master Fund. The Fund records its share of the Master Fund's income, expenses and
realized and wnrealized gains and lesses. In addition, the Fund accrues its own income and expenses.
The performance of the Fund is directly affected by the performance of the Master Fund. Attached are
the audited financial statements of the Master Fund, including the condensed schedule of investments
and significant accounting policies, which are an integral part of these financial statements. Valuation
of investments held by the Master Fund is discussed in the notes to the Master Fund's financial
statements.

At December 31, 2019, the Fund owns all of the shares of the Master Fund, with a net asset value of
£27,915,071 which represents a 100.00% ownership interest in the Master Fund.

Allocation of Income or Loss

The Fund allocates daily income or loss pro-rata among classes of units after consideration of any
prior day aceruals for operating expenses and management fees in the Fund.

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional cumency of the Fund is the U.S. Dollar. Assets and liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the U.S. Dollar are translated into 1.5, Dollars ai the mid-market rate of exchange
as reported by an independent pricing zervice. Purchases and sales of investmenis and income and
expenses denominated in cwrrencies other than U.S. Dollars are translated at the rates of exchange on
the respective dates of such transactions. The resulting gains or losses from such transactions are
included in realized and unrealized gains (losses) in the statement of operations,

Forward Currency Contracts

ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedping, requires qualitative disclosures about objectives and strategies
for using derivatives, quantitative disclosures about fair value amounts and gains and losses on
derivatives and disclosures about credit-risk related contingent features in derivatives agreements.

Although the Fund's functional cumency is the U.S. Dollar, a portion of the Fund's units are
denominated in Australian Dollars, Euro and Japanese Yen. As a result, the Fund enters into forward
currency contracts with BWNY Mellon, New York to mimmize the fuctuations of the net asset values
of the units denominated in foreign currencies. The term of the forward currency contracts is generally
monthly., The fair value for forward currency contracts 15 determined by obtaining independent mid-
market quotes for various forward currency settlements as available and interpolating values falling
between those settlement dates to arrive at a value for the individual contract. Gains and losses from
such forward cwrrency contracts are included in realized and unrealized gains (losses) on forward
currency contracts and foreign currency in the statement of operations and are allocated to the related
non-U.5. Dollar unit classes. The holders of non-U.S. Dollar unit classes may be exposed to cumency
risk to the extent that these currency hedge transactions are not effective. The Investment Manager
monitors the Fund’s exposure to currency risk. For the vear ended December 31, 2019, the Fund had a
quarterly average notional value on forward currency contracts of $12,753,206. No collateral has been
pledged or received by the Fund in relation to forward currency contracs,
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Nikko Global CB Fund

Motes to Financial Statements (contimued)

Year Ended December 31, 2019
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (confinued)

ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement, defines fair value for financial reporting, establishes a framework
used to measure fair value and enhances disclosure requirements for fair value measurements. The
Fund has categorized its financial instruments, based on the pronty of the valuation techrique, into a
three-level fair value hierarchy. The valuation hierarchy is based upon the observability of the inputs
to the valuation of the financial asset or liability as of the measurement date. A financial instrument's
categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to
the fair value measurement.

Baszed on the hierarchy, the Fund classifies its three forward currency contracts held in Australian
Diollars, Euro and Japanese Yen at December 31, 2019, with a net unrealized gain of 5129 367, as
Level 2 financial instruments. Refer to the attached audited financial statements of the Master Fund,
including the significant accounting policies, for further discussion on ASC 820,

Taxation

There is currently no taxation imposed on income or capital gains by the government of the Cayman
Islands. As aresult, no tax liability or expense has been recorded in the financial statements,

ASC 740, fmcome Taves., defines how uncertain tax positions should be recognized, measured,
presented and disclosed in the financial statements. The Fund has evaluated tax positions taken or
expected to be taken in the course of preparing the Fund's tax returns to determine whether the tax
positions are more likely than not to be sustained by the applicable tax authority. Based on this
analysis of all significant tax jurisdictions and open tax years subject to examination, all material tax
positions were deemed 0 meet a more likely than not threshold. Therefore no tax expense, including
any interest or penalties, was recorded for the vear ended December 31, 2019. To the extent the Fund
is required to record related interest and penalties, they would be included in interest expense and
other expenses, respectively, in the statement of operations.

Generally, the tax authonties in the junsdictions in which the Fund conducts its business can imtiate
examinations of tax retums or secunity transactions within various time periods from the date the
returns are filed or the date the security transactions occurred. As a result, certain tax retums or
security transactions are still subject to examination.

3. Operating Expenses
As described in the Prospecius, the Fund bears its own operating expenses and its pro-rata share of the
Master Fund's operating expenses. These expenses, including both transaction and non-transaction

related expenses, are accrued daily. For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Investment Manager
has not paid any expenses on behalf of the Fund.

4. Fees
Management Fee
The Fund pays the Investment Manager a quarterly management fee equal to 0.225% of the average

daily net asset value (NAV) of each of the USD Class, AUD Class, EUR Class and JPY Class during
each quarter (0.90% per annum).
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Nikko Global CB Fund

Motes to Financial Statements (contimued)
Year Ended December 31, 2019
4, Fees (continued)
Distributor Fee

The Fund has appointed SMBC Nikko Securities Ine. and UB S Securities Japan Ltd., a related party
to the Investment Manager, as Distributor in Japan. The Distributor is entitled to a Distributor fee,
payable each calendar quarter, at a per annum rate of 0.53% for the first 3300 million, 0.55% for the
next $300 million and 0.57%% for the part exceeding 3600 million of the average of the daily NAV of
the Fund during such quarter.

Agent Company Fee

The Agent Company (SMBC Mikko Securities Inc.) is entitled to a fee each calendar quarter at a per
annum rate of 0.10% of the average daily NAV of the Fund during such quarter. In addition, any
reasonable disbursements and out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the Agent Company for client
service on behalf of the Fund will be bome by the Fund.

Trustee and Administration Fees

The Trustee is entitled to a fee, payable each quarter, at a per annum rate of 0.12% for the first $300
million, 0.10%% for the next $300 million and 0.08% for the part exceeding $600 million of the
average daily NAV of the Fund during such quarter. In addition, an account maintenance fee of
$72,000 per anmum is payable to the Administrator,

5. Finandial Guarantees

The Fund enters into contracts that contain a varety of indemnifications. The Fund's maximum
exposure under these arrangements iz not known. However, the Fund has not had prior claims or
losses pursuant to these contracts and expects the risk of loss to be remote.

6. Units in Issue

The Fund is offering its units of beneficial interest (Units) in four separate classes. USD Class Units
will be denominated in U.5. Dollars, AUD Class Units will be denominated in Australian Dollars,
EUR Class Units will be denominated in Euro and JPY Class Units will be denominated in Japanese
Yen. The Fund may issue different classes of Units denominated in other cumrencies or with different
terms and conditions. Although different classes of Units are to be issned, there will be no segregation
of the funds arising from the subscription of the different classes of Units and such subscription finds,
and the investments made therewith, constitute a single undivided asset pool for the Fund. All
subscription proceeds received by the Trustee for the issue of Units, together with the assets in which
such proceeds are invested, and all income, profits or gains attnbutable thereto shall be held for the
benefit of all unitholders of the Fund, except for gains and losses from forward currency contracts
referenced in Note 2,

The dealing day for Umnits shall be each business day. Units may be redeemed any business day,
subject to the restrictions in the Prospectus.
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Nikko Global CB Fund

Motes to Financial Statements (contimued)

Year Ended December 31, 2019

6. Unitsin Issue (continued)

Unit transactions for the year ended December 31, 2019, were as follows:

Units outstanding, at
December 31, 2018

Units issued

Units redeemed

Units outstanding at
December 31, 2019

7. Dividend
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USD Class AUD Class EUR Class  JPY Class
168,562 133,905 23,561 18,638
2068 14,555 1,262 20
(31,053) (33,73 {1,000} (378)
139,577 114,728 23823 18,280

The Investment Manager may declare semi-annual distributions from the investment income and
realized and change in unrealized capital gains and, if considered necessary to maintain reasonable
level of distributions, out of any other funds available for distribution. The Investment Manager
intends to make distributions to unitholders on the last business day of the month of February and
Angust in each financial year of the Fund. Dividends are paid to unitholders on the basis that there are

gains to distribuie.

The Fund did not pay any dividends for the vear ended December 31, 2019,

8. Financial Highlights

The following represents the per Unit information, total return and ratios to average net assets for the

yvear ended December 31, 2019

Per unit operating performance
Beginning net assel value
Income from operations:

Met mvestment meome

Met realized and wrealzed gan
Total from operations

Ending net asset vale
Total return
Ratios to average net assels

Total expenses
Met mvestment ncome

UsD AUD EUR JPY
Class Class Class Class
806,83 AUD 95,18 £93.16 ¥9 308

0,09 0,07 0.08 8
10.58 5.9 6.75 724
10,67 9.01 5.83 732

S107.50 AUD 105.19 £9999  ¥10.130
11.02% 9.37% T.33% 7. 7%
2.54% 2.86% 2.84% 2.84%
0. 08% 0.07% 0.08% 0.08%

The financial highlights are calculated for each Class of Units taken as a whole. An individual
unitholder’s total return and ratios may vary from these returns and ratios based on forward currency
contracts and the timing of capital transactions.
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Nikko Global CB Fund

Notes to Financial Statements (contimued)
Year Ended December 31, 2019
9. Subsequent Events

The Investment Manager has evaluated the possibility of subsequent events existing in the Fund's
financial statements through March 31, 2020, the date the financial statements were available to be
issned, and has concluded that there are no recognized or non-recognized subsequent events for
financial statement adjustment or disclosure, other than as noted below.

Subsequent to the fiscal vear end, the global markets have been negatively impacted by the evolving
news of the spread of the public health condition known as coronavims (COVID-19). This situation
continues to be fluid and the extent of the impact will depend on future developments, including (i)
the duration and spread of the outbreak, (ii) the repercussions on the financial markets of restrictions
and advisories related to containing the outbreak, and (iii) the effects on the economy overall, all of
which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted. If the coronavirus outbreak continues for an
extended period of time, the Fund’s investments and performance results may be adversely affected.
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Nineteen77 Global Convertible Bond Master Limited

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
iStated in United States Dollars)

December 31, 2019

Assels

Cash

Fereign currency, at fair vahie (cost $1,113,369)
Investments in securities, at fair value {cost 821887217
Interest receivable

Subscriptions receivable

Total assets

Liabilities
Redemptions payable
Accrued expenses
Total liabilities

MNetl assels

Netasset value pershare (based on 108,657.14 shares outs tanding )

See accompanying noies,
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3,362,069
1,125,709
23,491,258
84,874
190,812

238,254,752

215,829
123,852

339,681

27,915,071

256.91




Nineteen77 Global Convertible Bond Master Limited

Statement of Operations
iStated in United States Dollars)

Year Ended December 31, 2019

Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on investments in securities

and foreign curre ney

Met realized loss on nvestments in securities and foreign currency  $

Net change m unrealzed appreciation’de preciation on

investments in securities and foreign currency

Met gain on investmenis in securities and foreign cumrency

Investment income
Interest

Total investment mcome

Expenses

Professional fees

Directors fees and other expenses

Interest expense

Addmimstration fees

Total expenses

Met mvestment income

Met change in net assets resulting from operations

See accompanying nofes,
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3232799

836,098
836,098

95450
61.806
7.680
7.095

172,031
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2982816

664,067
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Nineteen77 Global Convertible Bond Master Limited

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
(Stated in United States Daollars)

Year Ended December 31, 2019

Operations
Met investment income 3 664,067
Met realized loss on investments in securities and foreign currency {249,983)
Net change m unrealzed appreciation/depreciation on

investments in securities and foreign currency 3232799
Met change in net assets resulting from operations 3,646,883

Capital share transactions

Subscriptions 1,269,331
Redemptions (6,770,206}
Met change in net assets resulting from capital share transactions (5.500.875)
MNet change in net assets (1.853,992)
Met assets at beginning of year 29,769,063
MNet assets at end of year b 27.915.071

See arcompanying notes,
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Nineteen77 Global Convertible Bond Master Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
(Stated in United States Daollars)

Year Ended December 31, 2019

Operating activities
Met change in net assets resulting from operations 5 3,646,883
Adjustments to reconcik net change in net assets resulting from operations

to net cash provided by operating activities:

Purchases of securities (19.845,197)
Proceeds from sales of securities 25,863,450
Met realized loss on mvestments in securties 255,821
Net change in unrealized appreciation/depreciation on investments in securiies (3.683.882)
Met amontzation/accretion (370,654)
Changes in assets and liabilties;
Interest receivable 39,431
Accrued expenses 11,338
Met cash provided by operating activiiies 5922240
Financing activities
Subscriptions 1,078,519
Redemptions (6,690,755)
Met cash used in financing activities (5.612.236)
Met change in cash 310,004
Cash and foreign currency at beginning of year 4,177,774
Cash and foreign cwrrency at end of year 3 4487778

See arcompanying notes,
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Nineteen77 Global Convertible Bond Master Limited

Condensed Schedule of Investments
iStated in United States Dollars)

December 31, 2019
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Percent of
Description Fair Value Net Assels
Investments in securities
Convertible bonds
Americas:
Communc ation Services b 916,136 328 %
Consumer Discretionary
Tesla Inc 2.00%% 051572024 1,513423 542
Consumer Staples 1,034,475 a7
Fnancials 943433 3.38
Health Care
Medicines Compary 2.75% 07/15/2023 1,746,250 6.26
Other 3,390,871 12,15
Total Health Care 5137121 15.41
Industrials 958,776 343
Materials 1006657 16l
Technokogy 5816462 20.83
Total Americas (cost $15873,571) 17,326,483 5207
Asia:
Consumer Discretionary 989,033 354
Technokogy 1,180,268 4.23
Total Asia (cost $1,980.405) 2169301 7.77
Europe:
Commmumic ation Services 1,294 925 4.64
Fmancials 1,305,659 4.68
Industrials 868640 311
Total Europe {cost 53,622,707} 34659224 12.43
Total convertible bonds {cost $21,476,683) 22965008 8227
Preferred equities
Europe:
Commumication Services 373757 1.34
Financials 152,523 0.55
Total Europe (cost $410,534) 526,280 1.89
Total preferred equities (cost $410,534) 526,280 1.89
Total investments in securities (cost $21,887,217) 5 23491288 34.16 %%

See accompanying notes.
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2018 12 31

CB
2018 12 31
( ) « )

29,769,063 3,181,420
136,378 14,575
1,844 197
29,907,285 3,196,192
58,765 6,280
1,100 118
69,606 7,439
41,228 4,406
8,092 865
62,384 6,667
49,504 5,290
290,679 31,065
29,616,606 3,165,127

168,562 96.83 10,348

133,905 96.18 6,717

23,561 93.16 10,807

18,638 9,398
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CB

2018 12 31
( ) «c )
2,294,769 245,242
(3,546,117) (378,974)
(1,251,348) (133,732)
(1,096,405) (117,173)
(173,431) (18,535)
(1,269,836) (135,707)
1,211,337 129,456
(311,809) (33,323)
(99,400) (10,623)
(16,955) (1,812)
(28,571) (3,053)
754,602 80,644
(310, 657) (33,200)
(176,640) (18,878)
(33,649) (3,596)
(112,734) (12,048)
(108,440) (11,589)
(742,120) (79,310)
12,482 1,334

(2,508,702) (268, 105)
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CB

2018 12 31

( ) « D
12,482 1,334
2,294,769 245,242
(3,546,117) (378,974)
(1,269,836) (135,707)
(2,508,702) (268,105)
2,451,150 261,954
965,693 103,204
14,741 1,575
144,040 15,394
(3,945,474) (421,653)
(1,853,552) (198,089)
(300,852) (32,152)
(252,960) (27,034)
(4,006,142) (428,136)
(6,783,356) (724,937)
(556,304) (59,452)
(309,319) (33,057)
(865,623) (92,509)

(10,157,681)  (1,085,551)
39,774,287 4,250,678
29,616,606 3,165,127
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CB

2018 12 31

( ) C )
(2,508,702) (268,105)
10,143,417 1,084,027
173,431 18,535
(136,378) (14,575)
(1,844) (197)
(518,623) (55,425)
(18,203) (1,945)
(7,573) (809)
(1,109) (119)
11,823 1,264
(6,983) (746)
7,129,256 761,904
4,161,971 444,790
(10,425,604) (1,114,184)
(865,623) (92,509)

(7,129,256) (761,904)
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CB
2018 12 31
CB 2004
2004 13
UBS
UBS UBS
UBS AG UBS
UBS
BNY

BNY
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ASC 946

GAAP

2018 12 31 29,769,063
100.00

ASC 815

BNY

2018 12 31
16,468,671
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ASC 820

58,765

ASC 740

31

2018 12 31

2018 12 31
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ASC 820
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0.225 0.90
0.15 0.60

UBS

0.53
0.55 0.57

0.10

0.12 0.10
0.08 72,000
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2018 20
2018 12 31
( )
2017 12 31
183,257 145,099 25,970 19,833 29,551
23,530 12,616 125 1,570
(38,225)  (23,810) (2,534)  (2,765) (29,551)
2018 12 31
168,562 133,905 23,561 18,638
2018 589,822
2.00
2.00
2018 10 275,801
1.00

1.00
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104.23 104.40 100.59 10,110
(0.07) (0.06) (0.07) 0
(4.33) (5.16) (7.36) (705)
(4.40) (5.22) (7.43) (712)
(3.00) (3.00)

96.83 96.18 93.16 9,398

(4.39) (5.18) (7.39) (7.04)

3.38 3.36 3.38 3.38
0.07 0.05 0.07 0.07
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Nikko Global CB Fund

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
(Stated in United States Dallars)

December 31, 2018

Assets

Investment in Nmeteen 77T Global Corvertible Bond hMaster Limited
Redemption due from Nineteen?7 Global Convertible Bond Master Limited
Other assels

Total assets

Liabilities

Net unrealized loss on forward currency contracts
Redemptions pavable

Management fee payable

Distributor fee payable

Agent Company fee payable

Trustee and administration fee payable

Accrued expenses

Total liabilities

Net assels

Metasset value per share

USD Class (based on 168,562 units outstanding)
AUD Class (based on 133,905 unils outstanding)
EUR Class (based on 23,561 units outstanding )
JPY Class (based on 18,638 units outstanding)
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29769063

136378
1,844
29007 285

58,765
1,100
69,606
41,228
B002
62384
49,504
290679

£ 20616606

b 90 83
AUD 9618
€ 9316
IPY 9398

Bee pecompanying notes and attached financial statements af Nineteen 77 CGlobal Convertible Bond Master

Limited.
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Mikko Global CB Fund

Statement of Operations
(Stated in United States Dallars)

Year Ended December 31, 20018

Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on investments in
securities and foreign currency allocate d from Nineteen77
Global Convertible Bond Master Limited

Met realized gain on investments in securities and foremzn currency b 2,294 769
Net change m unreahzed appreciation/depreciation on mvestments
in securities and foreizn currency (3,5d46,11 Et
MNet koss on investments in securities and foreizn currency allocated
from Mineteen?7 Global Convertible Bond Master Limited 5 (1.251.348)

Realized and unrealize d gains (losses) on forward curreney
contracts and foreign currency

Net realized loss on forward currency contracts and foregn currency [ 1,096.405)
Met change m unrealized gain/lss on forward currency contracts
and foregn currency 173431)
Net loss on forward currency contracts and foreign currency (1,260 836

Net investment income {loss) allocated from Nineteen77 Global
Convertible Bond Master Limited

Interast ncome 1,211,337
Interest expense (311,809
Professional fees (99,4000
Administration fees (16,955)
Directors fees and other expenses (28,571}
Met mvestment income allocated from Nineteen77 Global

Corvertible Bond Master Limted T54.602

Fund expenses

Management fee (210,657)
Distributer fee (1766407
Agent Company fee (33,645
Trustee and adminstration fee (112,734
Professional fees and other expenses (1084407
Total Fund expenses 7421207
Met mvestment income 12482
Met change in net assets resulting from operations $ (25087023

See accompanying notes and attached firancial staterents of Nineteen 77 Global Comvertible Bond Master
Limited.
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Nikko Global CB Fund

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
(Stated in United States Dallars)

Year Ended December 31, 20018

O perations

BMet myvestment neome

Met realized gain on investments in securities and foreign currency
allocated from Mineteen77 Global Convertible Bond Master Limited

MNet change m unreahzed appreciation/depreciation on mvestments m
securities and foreign currency allocated from
Nineteen77 Global Convertible Bond Master Limited

Net loss on forward currency contracts and foreign currency

Net change in net assets resulting from operations

Capital unit transactions

USD Class subscriptions

AUD Clss subscriptions

EUR Class subscriptions

JPY Class subscriptions

USD Class redemptions

AUD Class redemptions

EUR Class redemptions

IPY Class redemptions

JPY Class (Hedged) redemptions
Net change mnet assets resulting from capital unit transactions

Dis tributions

USD Class dstributions

AUD Chss distributions

Met change in net assets resulting from distributions

Met change in net assets
MNet assets at begmning of vear
MNet assets at end of year
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5 12452
2,204,769

(3.546,117)

(1.269.836)
(2508,702)

2,451,150
965,693
14,741
14,040
(3.945474)
(1,853,552)
(300,852)
(252.960)

(00,1421
(6.783.356)

(556304)
(309319
(B6:3,623)

(10,157681)
39,774,287
5 20.616,606

See pecompanyving notes and attached fearnciol statements af Nineteen 77 Globel Comvertible Bond Master

Liwmited,
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Nikko Global CB Fund

Statement of Cash Flows
(Stated in United States Dallars)

Year Ended December 31, 20018

Operating activities
Net change mnet assets resulting from operations S (2508.702)
Adpstments to reconcile net change in net assets resulting from operations
1o net cash provided by aperating activities:
Changes m assets amnd habilities:
Inwvestment in NmeteenT7 Global Convertible Bond Master Limited 10143417

MNet unrealized gam/loss on forward currency contracts 173,431
Fedemption due from Nineteen?7 Global Convertible Bond Master Limited (136.378)
Other assets (1,844
Subseription due to Nineteen77 Global Convertible Bond Master Limited (518623}
Management fee pavable (18,203}
Distributor fee pavable (7.573)
Agent Company fee pavable (1,109
Trustee and adminstration fee payable 11,523
Accrued expenses (6983}
Met cash provided by operating activities 1129256
Financing activities
Subscriptions 4161971
Redemptions (10425,604)
Distributions (B65.623)
Met cash used in financing activities (7.129.256)
MNet change m cash -
Cash at beginning of year -
Cash at end of year b -

See gccompanying notes and atteched firancial statements of Nineteen 77 Global Convertible Bord Master
Limited.
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Nikko Global CB Fund

Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2018
1. Organization

Nikko Global CB Fund (the Fund) is an open-ended exempted trust formed under the trust laws of the
Cayman Islands by a deed of trust dated July 6, 2004, The Fund 1s regulated as a mutual fund under
the Mutual Funds Law of the Cayman [slands and the Retail Mutual Funds (Japan) Regulations. The
Fund commenced operations on August 13, 2004, The Fund 15 a feeder fund in a master-feeder
structure whereby the Fund invests substantially all of its assets in Nineteen77 Global Cenvertible
Bond Master Limited, (the Master Fund), a company incorporated under the laws of the Cayman
Islands, The Master Fund's imvestment objective 15 to invest in a diversified portfolio of international
convertible securities. Convertible securities include debt securities, preferred stock and other hybrid
securities which pay curremt imterest or dividends and give the helder the right to exchange the
security for common stock,

The Company's adviser is UBS O'Connor LLC (the Investment Manager), a Delaware limited
liability company, which 15 registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission as an
investment adviser. The Investment Manager may use certain personnel of one or more of its affiliates
or engage one or more of its afliliates as sub-advisers to provide investment advice for certain assets
of the Master Fund The Investment Manager is a wholly-owned subsidiary of UBE Americas
Holding LLC. UBS Americas Holding LLC and any affilisted sub-advisers are whelly owned
subsidiaries of UB3 AG (UBS) and are part of UBS Asset Management, which provides various
operational and managerial support services to the Investment Manager.

The Fund's administrator is BNY Mellon Fund Management (Cayvman) Limited (the Administrator).
The Adminstrator has delegated the adminstration of the Fund to BNY Mellon Fund Services
(Ireland) Designated Activity Company (the Sub-Administrator) The Sub-Administrator provides
certain administrative services to the Fund, including maintenance of the Fund's books and records,
and serves as registrar for the Fund's units, The Administrator also serves as trustee of the Fund (the
Trustee).

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Investment Manager has evaluated the structure, objectives and activities of the Fund and
determined that it meets the characteristics of an investment company. As such, these financial
statements have applied the guidance set forth in Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 946,
Financial Services — Tnvestment Companies, The following 15 a summary of significant accounting
and reporting policies used in preparing the financial statements.

Use of Estimates

The financial statements have been prepared in aceordance with U5, generally accepled accounting
principles (GAAP). The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
accompany ing notes. Actual results could differ from such estimates.
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Nikko Global CB Fund

Motes to Financial Statements (continued)
Year Ended December 31, 2018
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investments

The Fund’s investment in the Master Fund is recorded at fair value, which is the Fund’s interest in the
net assets of the Master Fund. The Fund records its share of the Master Fund's income, expenses and
realized and unrealized gains and losses, In addition, the Fund acerues its own income and expenses,
The performance of the Fund is directly affected by the performance of the Master Fund. Attached are
the audited financial statements of the Master Fund, including the condensed schedule of investments
and significant accounting policies, which are an integral part of these financial statements. Valuation
of investments held by the Master Fund is discussed in the notes to the Master Fund's financial
statements,

At December 31, 2018, the Fund owns all of the shares of the Master Fund, with a net asset value of
$29,769,063 which represents a 100.00% ownership interest in the Master Fund,

Allecation of Income or Loss

The Fund allocates daily income or loss pro-rata among classes of units after consideration of any
prior day accruals for operating expenses and management fees in the Fund.

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency of the Fund 1s the 1TL3. Dollar. Assets and habilities denominated in a
currency other than the U5, Dallar are translated into ULS. Dallars at the mid-market rate of exchange
as reported by an independent pricing service. Purchases and sales of investments and income and
expenses denominated in currencies other than 1.5, Dollars are translated at the rates of exchange on
the respective dates of such transactions, The resulting gains or losses from such transactions are
included in realized and unrealized gains (losses) in the statement of operations.

Forward Currency Contracts

ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging, requires qualitative disclosures about objectives and strategies
for using derivatives, quantitative disclosures about fair wvalue amounts and gains and losses on
dervatives and disclosures about eredit-risk related contingent features in derivatives agreements.

Although the Fund’s functienal currency is the U5, Dollar, a portion of the Fund's umits are
denominated in Australian Dollars, Euro and Japanese Yen, As a result, the Fund enters into forward
currency contracts with BNY Mellon, New York to minimize the fluctuations of the net asset values
of the units denominated in foreign currencies. The term of the forward currency contracts is generally
monthly. The fair value for forward curreney contracts is determined by obtaming independent rmud-
market quotes for various forward currency settlements as available and interpolating values falling
between those settlement dates to arrive at a value for the individual contract. Gains and losses from
such forward currency contracts are included in realized and unrealized gains (losses) on forward
currency contracts and foreign currency in the statement of operations and are allocated to the related
non-105. Dollar unit classes. The holders of non-US, Dollar unit classes may be exposed to currency
risk to the extent that these currency hedge transactions are not effective. The Investment Manager
monitors the Fund's exposure to currency risk. For the vear ended December 31, 2018, the Fund had a
quarterly average notional value on forward currency contracts of $16,468,671. No collateral has been
pledged or received by the Fund in relation to forward currency contracts,
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Nikko Global CB Fund

Motes to Financial Statements (continued)
Year Ended December 31, 2018
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

ASC 820, Fair Falue Measurement, defines fair value for financial reporting, establishes a framework
used to measure far value and enhances disclosure requirements for fair value measurements. The
Fund has categorized its financial instruments, based on the priority of the valuation technique, into a
three-level fairr value hierarchy. The valuation hierarchy is based upon the observability of the inputs
to the valuation of the financial asset or liability as of the measurement date, A financial instrument’s
categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to
the fair value measurement,

Based on the hierarchy, the Fund classifies its three forward currency contracts held in Australian
Dollars, Euro and Japanese Yen at December 31, 2008, with a net unrealized loss of $58,765, as Level
2 financial instruments. Refer to the attached audited financial statements of the Master Fund,
including the significant accounting policies, for further discussion on ASC 820,

Taxation

There is currently no taxation imposed on income or capital gains by the govemment of the Cayman
Islands. As a result, no tax liability or expense has been recorded in the financial statements.

ASC 740, Income Taves, defines how uncertain tax positions should be recognized, measured,
presented and disclosed in the finaneial statements, The Fund has evaluated 1ax positions taken or
expected to be taken in the course of preparing the Fund's tax retumns to determine whether the tax
positions are more likely than not to be sustained by the applicable tax authonity. Based on this
analysis of all significant tax jurisdictions and open tax years subject to examination, all material tax
positions were deemed to meet a more likely than not threshold. Therefore no tax expense, including
any interest or penalties, was recorded for the vear ended December 31, 2018, To the extent the Fund
15 required 1o record related interest and penalties, they would be included in interest expense and
other expenses, respectively, in the statement of operations.

Generally, the tax authorities in the jurisdictions in which the Fund conduets its business can initiate
examinations of tax retums or security transactions within vanous time periods from the date the
returns are filed or the date the security transactions occurred. As a resull, certain tax returns or
security transactions are still subject to examination.

3. Operating Expenses

As described in the Prospectus, the Fund bears its own operating expenses and its pro-rata share of the
Master Fund's operating expenses. These expenses, including both transaction and nen-transaction
related expenses, are accrued daily, For the vear ended December 31, 2018, the Investment Manager
has not paid any expenses on behalf of the Fund.

4. Fees

Management Fee

The Fund pays the Investment Manager a quarterly management fee equal to 0.225% of the average
daily net asset value (NAV) of each of the USD Class, AUD Class, EUR Class and JPY Class during

each quarter (0.90% per annum) and 0.15% of the average daily WAV of the JPY Class (Hedged)
during each quarter (0.60% per annum).
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Nikko Global CB Fund

MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)
Year Ended December 31, 2018
4. Fees (continued)
Distributor Fee

The Fund has appointed SMBC Nikko Securities [ne, and UBS Securities Japan Ltd., a related party
to the Investment Manager, as Distributor in Japan. The Distributor is entitled to a Distributor fee,
pavable each ealendar quarter, at a per annum rate of 0.53% far the first 5300 million, 0.55% for the
next 2300 million and 0.57% for the part exceeding 5500 million of the average of the daily NAV of
the Fund during such quarter. There 1s no Distributor fee for the JPY Class (Hedged).

Agent Company Fee

The Agent Company (SMBC Nikko Securities Inc.) is entitled to a fee each calendar quarter at a per
annum rate of 0.10% of the average daily NAV of the Fund dunng such quarter. In addition, any
reasonable disbursements and outl-of-pocket expenses incurred by the Agent Company for client
service on behalf of the Fund will be borne by the Fund. There is no Agent Company fee for the JPY
Class (Hedged).

Trustee and Administration Fees

The Trustee is entitled to a fee, pavable each quarter, at a per annum rate of 0.12% for the first 3300
million, 0,10% for the next $300 million and 0.08% for the part exceeding $600 million of the
average daily NAV of the Fund during such quarter. In addition, an account maintenance fee of
£72.000 per annum 15 payable to the Administrator,

5. Financial Guarantees

The Fund enters into contracts that contain a variety of indemnifications. The Fund's maximum
exposure under these arrangements 1s not known. However, the Fund has not had prior claims or
losses pursuant to these contracts and expects the risk of loss 1o be remote.

6. Units in Issue

The Fund is offering its units of beneficial interest (Units) in four separate classes. USD Class Units
will be denominated in U8, Dollars, AUD Class Units will be denominated in Australian Dollars,
EUR Class Units will be denominated in Euro and JPY Class Units will be denominated in Japanese
Yen. The Fund also offered JPY Class (Hedged) Units which were denominated in Japanese Yen until
August 20, 2018 when the share class was fully redeemed. The Fund may issue different classes of
Units denominated in other currencies or with different terms and conditions. Although different
classes of Umts are 1o be issued, there will be no segregation of the funds ansing from the
subseription of the different classes of Units and such subseription funds, and the investments made
therewith, constitute a single undivided asset pool for the Fund. All subscription proceeds received by
the Trustee for the issue of Units, together with the assets in which such proceeds are invested, and all
income, profits or gains attributable thereto shall be held for the benefit of all unitholders of the Fund,
except for gains and losses from forward currency contracts referenced in Note 2.

The dealing day for Units shall be each business day. Units may be redeemed any business day,
subject to the restrictions in the Prospectus,
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Mikko Global CB Fund
MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)
Year Ended December 31, 2018
6. Units in Issue (continued)

Unit transactions for the year ended December 31, 2018, were as follows:

USD Class  AUD Class EUR Class  JPY Class  JPY Class

(Hedged)
Units outstanding at
December 31, 2017 183,257 145,000 25570 19,833 28,551
Units issued 23,530 12,616 125 1.570 -
Units redeemed (38,225 (238109 (2,534) (2,765) (29.551%
Units outstanding at
December 31, 2018 168,562 133008 23,561 18,638 -
7. Dividend

The Investment Manager may declare semi-annual distributions from the investment income and
realized and change in unrealized capital gains and, 1if considered necessary to mamtain reasonable
level of distributions, out of any other funds available for distribution. The Investment Manager
intends to make distributions to unitholders on the last business day of the month of February and
August in each Minancial year of the Fund, Dividends are paid to unitholders on the basis that there are

gains to distribute.

The Fund paid dividends of $389.822 with a drvidend per Unit on March 7, 201 8 as follows:

AUD Class ALD 2.00 per Unit
USD Class UsD 2.00 per Uni

The Fund paid dividends of $275,801 with a dividend per Unit on September 10, 2018 as follows:

AUD Class AL 1.00 per Untt
USD Class Ush 1.00 per Unit
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Mikko Global CB Fund

MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year Ended December 31, 2018

8. Financial Highlights

The following represents the per Unit information, total return and ratios to average net assets for the

vear ended December 31, 2018:

FPer unit operating pe rformance
Begmnimg net asset value
Income (loss) from operations:

Met investment loss

Met realized and unrealized loss
Total from operations
Dstributions
Endmg net asset value

Total return be fore distributions
Ratios to average net assels

Total expenses
Net mvestment loss

UsD AUD EUR JPY
Class Class Class Class

423 AUD 10440 € 100,59 ¥10,110

(0.07) (0.06) (0.07) (7.00)
(4.33) (5.16) {7.36) (705}
(4.40) (5.22 (7.43) (M2
{3.00) (3.00) - -

o682 _ALJD 06 138 £95.16 X0 Jo%

(4.390% (5.18)%  (7.390%  (7.04)%%

3.38% 3.36% 3.38% 3.38%
007 0.05% 0.07% 0.0

The financial highlights are calculated for each Class of Units taken as a whole. An individual
unitholder’s total retum and ratios may vary from these retums and ratios based on forward currency
contracts and the timing of capital transactions.

9. Subsequent Events

The Investment Manager has evaluated the possibility of subsequent events existing in the Fund's
financial statements through April 16, 2019, the date the financial statements were available to be
issued and has concluded that there are no recognized or non-recognized subsequent events for
financial statement adjustment or disclosure.
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2020
11,226,518 1,199,777,979
70,777 7,563,938
11,155,741 1,192,214,041
111,209
100.31 10,720
2020
4,447,694 515,932,504
2,206,135 255,911,660
2,241,560 260,020,960
23,511
95.34 11,059
2020
22,455,719 1,568,307,415
11,120,180 776,633,371
11,335,539 791,674,044
116,179
97.57 6,814
2020

314,302,054

156,519,979

157,782,075

16,403

9,619
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2019 12 31

UBS

2019 12 31

18,171,358 1,941,973
51,001,306 5,450,510
757,069 80,908
1,786,129 190,884
71,715,862 7,664,274
38,195,003 4,081,900
13,783,393 1,473,031
51,978,396 5,554,931
19,737,466 2,109,343

71,715,862 7,664,274
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2,600,615 277,928
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88,131,307 9,418,593
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910,418

(1,408,263)
(45,059)
(38,903)

2,257,035
(335, 441)

12,536,608

(10,000,000)

1,339,787

(1,068,700)

(10,000,000)

(1,068,700)

2,536,608
15,634,750

271,087
1,670,886

18,171,358

1,941,973
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UBS O'Connor LLC

Statement of Financial Condition

December 31, 2019

Assets

Cash

Advisory fees receivable
Due from affiliates
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and member’s equity
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to affiliates

Total liabilities

Member's equity

Total liabilities and member’s equity

See accompanying notes.
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$ 18,171,358
51,001,306
757,069
1,786,129

$  T1,715862

$ 38,195,003
13,783,393

51,978,396
19,737,466

$ 71,715,862




Year Ended December 31, 2019

Revenues
Advisory fees
Interest income
Other income
Total revenues

Expenses

Personnel

Allocated expenses from affiliates
Professional fees

Subadvisory fees to third party
Information technology

Travel and entertainment

Other

Total expenses

Net income

See accompanying notes.

UBS O'Connor LLC

Statement of Operations
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$ 95862554
328,914
458,766

96,650,234

56,043,132
26,524,201
2,600,615
199,984
1,482,611
361,990
918,774

88,131,307

3 8,318,927




UBS O*Connor LLC
Statement of Changes in Member’s Equity

Year Ended December 31, 2019

Member’s equity as of December 31, 2018

Net income

Capital return to UBS Americas Holding LLC
Member’s equity as of December 31, 2019

See AcCOmpanying nofes.
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$ 21,218,539
8,518,927
(10,000,000)

$ 19,737,466




UBS O'Connor LLC

Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2019

Operating activities
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by

operating activities:
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Advisory fees receivable
Due from affiliates
Other assets
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to affiliates
Met cash provided by operating activities

Financing activities
Capital return to UBS Americas Holding LLC
Net cash used in financing activities

Met increase in cash
Cash at beginning of year
Cash at end of year

Nee accompanying nofes.
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3 8,518,927

(13,177.342)
(421,625)
(364,022)

21.119.442
(3,138.772)

12,536,608

(10,000,000)

(10,000,000)

2,536,608
15,634,750

5 18,171,358
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UBS O’Connor LLC
Notes to Financial Statements

Year Ended December 31, 2019

1. Organization and Nature of Business

UBS O’Connor LLC (the Company) is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of UBS Group AG
(UBS or the ultimate Parent). The Company’s direct parent has been changed from UBS
Americas Holding LLC to UBS Asset Management (Americas) Inc. as of December 31, 2019
The Company is part of the UBS Asset Management business, a division of UBS and is an
investment adviser registered with the US. Securities and Exchange Commission and the
Financial Services Agency in Japan. The Company provides asset management and advisory
services to a series of affiliated altemative investment funds and separately managed accounts
(the Funds). All of the Company’s advisory fees are from the Funds.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (U.S. GAAP). The preparation of these financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from such estimates.

Cash

Cash represents deposits of $17,113,475 held at affiliates of the Company and a deposit of
$1,057,883 held at a non-affiliated bank.

Advisory Fees and Receivables

Advisory fees, including asset-based and performance fees, are recorded as revenue as services
are performed based upon terms of the advisory agreements. Subadvisory fees and distribution
fees between third parties and affiliates of the Company are based on a percentage of net assets
under management and performance. Subadvisory fees and distribution fees between affiliates
are presented net within advisory fees on the statement of operations. Subadvisory fees and
distribution fees to third party are recorded within expenses on the statement of operations,
Subadvisory fees payable and distribution fees between affiliates are presented in due to
affiliates and due from affiliates, respectively, on the statement of financial condition.
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UBS O'Connor LLC

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Capped fees represent reimbursements from the Funds for costs and expenses borne by the
Company on behalf of the Funds, among other expenses of the Company, and are charged to the
Funds based on the a percentage of net assets under management. Capped fees are included in
advisory fee revenue on the statement of operations, net of any related Fund administration
expenses. Other Fund related expenses are presented within professional fees on the statement of
operations.

The below table includes revenues which are impacted by Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 606, Revenue from Contracis with
Customers and it includes only those contracts with customers that are in scope of ASC Topic
606,

Disaggregation of Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Advisory fees from the Funds 109973016
Capped fees from the Funds 24,928,207
Distribution fees from affiliates 2,422 328
Distribution fees to affiliates (21,991,875)
Subadvisory fees to affiliates (16,433,952)
Fund admimistration fees (3,035,170)
Total $ 95,862 554

An allowance for doubtful accounts is established. as needed, for those accounts receivable for
which collection is in doubt. No allowance for doubtful accounts has been recorded as of
December 31, 2019,

Income Taxes

The Company is treated as a disregarded entity for U.S. federal, state and local income tax
purposes. As such, the Company does not provide for or pay any U.S. federal or state income
taxes. All income, expense, gain or loss of the Company flows through to the Parent,
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UBS O'Connor LLC

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Consolidation

U.S. GAAP requires a reporting entity to first assess the consolidation of entities on the basis of
the reporting entity’s ownership of a majority of voting interest. However, in certain situations,
there are no voting rights, or ownership of a majority of voting interest is not a reliable indicator
of control. If voting interests do not exist or if they differ significantly from economic interests
or if holders of the equity investment at risk lack the power to direct activities of the entity, the
obligation to absorb the expected losses of the entity or the right to receive the expected residual
returns of the entity, the entity 1s considered a Varnable Interest Entity (VIE) under ASC Topic
810, Consedidation (ASC Topic 810), and control is based on a qualitative determination of
which party has a controlling financial interest in the VIE (known as the primary
beneficiary). See note 3 for additional information.

Foreign Currency Remeasurement

The Company’s functional currency is the U.S. dollar, however, it transacts some business in
currencies other than the U.S. dollar. Assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than
the U.S. dollar are remeasured to U.S, dollars at the prevailing spot rate in effect at year-end.
Revenues and expenses are translated at average rates during the period. Gains or losses resulting
from foreign currency transactions are determined using spot rates on the date of the transaction.
For the year ended December 31, 2019, net foreign currency income of $249,623 is included in
other income on the statement of operations.

Accounting Developments
Adopted in 2019

In February 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-02, Leases. The
standard substantially changes how lessees must account for operating lease commitments,
requiring a lease liability with a corresponding right-of-use asset to be recognized on the balance
sheet, compared with the current off-balance sheet treatment of such leases. The Company
adopted ASU 2016-02 as of January 1, 2019. Upon adoption, the assets and liabilities of the
Company were not impacted as the Company is not a lessee to any leases.
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UBS O'Connor LLC

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Pending Adoption

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments — Credit Losses (Topic 326)
Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments. The amendment replaces existing
incurred loss impairment guidance and introduces a new credit loss model; the Current Expected
Credit Losses model (CECL), which requires earlier recognition of credit losses. The CECL
model requires the measurement of all expected credit losses for financial assets carried at
amortized cost based on historical experience, current conditions and reasonable and supportable
forecasts over the full remaining expected life of the financial assets. The Company will adopt
the amendment on January 1, 2020, Upon adoption, the Company will not be impacted as it does
not hold any financial instruments carried at amortized cost.

In December 2019, the FASB issued ASU 2019-12, providing guidance that simplifies the
accounting for income taxes by eliminating certain exceptions to ASC 740 related to, among
other things, the approach for intra-period tax allocation, the methodology for calculating income
taxes in an interim period and the recognition of deferred tax liabilities for outside basis
differences, and other codification improvements. In addition, ASU 2019-12 specifies that an
entity 1s not required to allocate the consolidated amount of current and deferred tax expense to a
legal entity that is not subject to tax in its separate financial statements. However, an entity may
elect to do so (on an entity-by-entity basis) for a legal entity that is both not subject to tax and
disregarded by the taxing authority. ASU 2019-12 is effective for fiscal years, and interim
periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2020. Early adoption of the
amendments is permitted. The Company is presently evaluating the effect of ASU 2019-12, and
expects no material impact to its financial statements.

3. Sponsored Hedge Fund Entities

The Company is the investment manager of certain hedge fund entities. The purpose of these
funds is to provide strategy specific investment opportunities for investors in exchange for
management fees and performance based fees. The investment strategies of the funds differ by
product; however, the fundamental risks of the funds have similar characteristics, including loss
of invested capital and loss of management fees and performance based fees. In the Company’s
role as tax matter partner or investment adviser, it generally considers itself the sponsor of the
applicable fund. Certain of the funds may be deemed to be VIEs. The Company's variable
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UBS O'Connor LLC

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. Sponsored Hedge Fund Entities (continued)

interests in such VIEs predominantly include insignificant equity interests, The Company does
not provide performance guarantees and has no other financial obligation to provide funding to
any VIEs other than its own capital commitments. As of December 31, 2019, the Company did
not have any material VIEs that had to be consolidated.

4. Related-Party Transactions

On December 20, 2019, the Company returned capital contributions of $10,000.000 to UBS
Americas Holding LLC prior to the Company being reparented to UBS Asset Management
{Americas) Inc.

The Company allocates a portion of its advisory fee revenue to UBS O’Connor Limited (a UK.
company), UBS Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited (a Hong Kong company) and UBS
Asset Management (Singapore) Ltd (a Singapore company) for certain funds under subadvisory
agreements. These subadvisory fees, totaling $16,433 952 for the vear ended December 31,
2019, are netted in advisory fees on the statement of operations, UBS O’Connor Limited, UBS
Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited and UBS Asset Management (Singapore) Ltd are
affiliates of the Company.

As of December 31, 2019, $1,255,346 of subadvisory fees payable to UBS O'Connor Limited,
$82263 of subadvisory fees payable to UBS Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited and
$742,322 of subadvisory fees payable to UBS Asset Management (Singapore) Ltd are included
in due to affiliates on the statement of financial condition.

Allocated expenses relate to costs allocated to the Company by affiliates. Allocated expenses
relate to overhead, occupancy, information technology, benefits, marketing and other
compensation plan costs charged to the Company by affiliates that provide such services and
support. For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company incurred $25,053 166 in allocated
expenses from affiliates, excluding occupancy expenses.

The Company occupies office space in several locations leased by other UBS affiliates under
external lease commitments. For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company incurred
$1,471,035 in occupancy expenses allocated from affiliates.
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UBS O'Connor LLC

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

4. Related-Party Transactions (continued)

The Company reimburses affiliates for amounts paid on behalf of the Company. As of
December 31, 2019, $5,991,752 is included in due to affiliates on the statement of financial
condition.

The Company has paid certain distribution fees to affiliates of UBS. Such distribution fees are
recorded net within advisory fees on the statement of operations. For the year ended
December 31, 2019, the Company incurred $21,991,875 in distribution fees to affiliates. As of
December 31, 2019, $5,711,710 of distribution fees payable to affiliates is included in due to
affiliates on the statement of financial condition.

The Company has entered into an Investment Management agreement with UBS Asset
Management (Canada) Inc. to permit certain Canadian funds and investors to invest into a
Company-advised fund. Fees earned for the year ended December 31, 2019 under this agreement
of $2,422 328 are included in advisory fees on the statement of operations. As of December 31,
2019, fees receivable of $757,069 is included in due from affiliates on the statement of financial
condition,

5. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company participates with affiliates in a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan
sponsored by the Parent that provides retirement benefits to eligible employees.

Effective December 2, 2001, the defined benefit pension plan was closed to new employees, and
new employees were automatically enrolled into the new retirement contribution feature of the
defined contnbution 401(k) plan and began earning retirement contributions beginning
January 1, 2002. In addition, existing employees as of December 1, 2001, made an election either
to participate in the new retirement contribution feature of the defined contrbution 401(k) plan
as of January 1, 2002, or to remain in the defined benefit pension plan.

The Company also participates in a Parent sponsored postretirement medical and dental plan.
Retiree medical and dental premiums are subsidized for eligible employees who retired prior to
January 1, 2014. Effective January 1, 2017, retirees who retired between and including January
1, 1999 and December 31, 2013, will be required to pay the full cost for dental coverage. Eligible
employees who retired on or after January 1, 2014 pay the full cost of medical and dental
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UBS O'Connor LLC

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

5. Employee Benefit Plans (continued)

coverage. With respect to the postretirement medical plan, the Parent's policy is to fund benefits
on a pay-as-you-go basis. From January 1, 2019, these participants who are age 65 or older, or
certain employees who are pre-65 and Medicare eligible, will receive an annual notional
contribution to a Health Savings Account which they can use to purchase medical insurance and
pay for eligible medical related expenses.

The Company incurred expenses of $65,952 related to the aforementioned benefit plans for the
year ended December 31, 2019, which are included in personnel expense on the statement of
operations.

The Company also participates in a defined contribution 401(k) plan of the Parent that provides
retirement benefits to eligible employees. Under the defined contribution 401(k) plan,
participants may contribute a portion of their eligible compensation on a pre-tax basis, and on a
Roth 401(k) and after-tax basis, with the Company matching some portion of those
contributions, subject to certain limitations prescribed by the Internal Revenue Code. The
Company’s matching contributions to each participant will be limited to an annual amount of
$8,000 effective from January 1, 2020, The limit was increased from $5,850 in 2019, Eligible
participants may also receive a retirement contribution under the defined contribution plan. A
participant is 100% vested in the Company's retirement and matching contribution plus earnings
thereon after the earlier of three years of service, attaining age 65 while still an employee,
becoming totally and permanently disabled or upon death.

Generally, to receive a retirement contribution and/or retain the Company’s matching
contributions for the year, a participant must be an active employee on the last business day of
that year. The Company made a matching contribution of $187,193 to this plan during the year,
which is included in personnel expense on the statement of operations. The retirement
contribution 15 equal to 2.0% to 3.5% of eligible compensation depending on a participant’s date
of employment, subject to certain limitations prescribed by the Internal Revenue Code. The
Company made $129,408 of retirement contribution to this plan during the year, which is
included in personnel expense on the statement of operations.
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UBS O'Connor LLC

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

6. Equity Participation and Other Compensation Plans

The Parent has several share-based and other compensation plans that align the interests of
Group Executive Board (GEB) members and other employees with the interests of investors.
These compensation plans are also designed to meet regulatory requirements. The most
significant compensation plans are described below.

Eguity Ohenership Plan (EQF)

The EOP is a mandatory deferred share-based compensation plan for all employees with total
annual compensation greater than USD 300,000, Starting with performance year 2019, GEB
members, Group Managing Directors (GMDs) and Vice Chairs receive Long-Term Incentive
Plan (LTIP) awards instead of EOP. The Company currently does not have any emplovees
receiving the LTIP awards for the year ended December 31, 2019.

EOP awards granted to GEB members and GMDs in 2019 and prior years, as well as EOP
awards granted to certain other emplovees, will only vest if both Group and business division
performance conditions are met. For awards granted in 2019 and 2020, related to the
performance years 2018 and 2019, respectively, the Group performance condition is based on the
average reported return on common equity tier | capital (RoCET1), For awards granted in 2018
and before, the Group performance condition is based on the average adjusted return on tangible
equity (RoTE) excluding deferred tax assets over the performance period. Business division
performance is measured on the basis of their average adjusted return on attributed equity
(RoAE). For Corporate Center employees, it is measured on the basis of the average operating
businesses” adjusted RoAE.

Certain awards, such as replacement awards issued outside the normal performance year cycle,
may take the form of deferred cash under the EOP plan rules.

Notional shares represent a promise to receive UBS shares at vesting and do not carry voting
rights during the vesting period. Awards granted generally carry a dividend equivalent that may
be paid in notional shares or cash and that vests on the same terms and conditions as the awards.
However, starting with awards granted in 2018 for the performance year 2017, European
Banking Authority guidelines do not permit individuals who are deemed to be Matenal Risk
Takers (MRTs) to receive dividend or interest payments on instruments awarded as deferred
variable compensation. Where dividend payments are not permitted, the grant price of the EOP
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UBS O'Connor LLC

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

6. Equity Participation and Other Compensation Plans (continued)

award is adjusted for the expected dividend yield over the vesting period to reflect the fair value
of the non-dividend-bearing award.

Awards are settled by delivering UBS shares at vesting, except in jurisdictions where this is not
permitted for legal or tax reasons. EOP awards generally vest in equal installments after two and
three years following the granting of such awards. Awards granted to GEB members in 2019 and
prior years generally vest after three, four and five years. The awards are generally forfeitable
upon, among other circumstances, voluntary termination of employment with UBS. All EOP
expenses recognized in the performance year for retirement eligible employees are subject to an
expected forfeiture rate, which was 6% for the yvear ended December 31, 2019

Deferred Contingent Capital Plan (DCCFP)

The DCCP is a mandatory deferred compensation plan for all employees with total annual
compensation greater than USD 300,000,

DCCP awards take the form of notional additional tier 1 (AT1) capital instruments, which, at the
discretion of UBS, can be settled in either a cash payment or a perpetual, marketable AT1 capital
instrument. DCCP awards vest in full after five years, unless there is a trigger event.

Awards are forfeited if a viability event occurs, i.e., if FINMA notifies the firm in writing that
the DCCP awards must be written down to prevent an insolvency, bankruptey or failure of UBS,
or if UBS receives a commitment of extraordinary support from the public sector that is
necessary to prevent such an event. Additionally, they are also written down if the Group’s
common equity tier 1 capital ratio falls below 10% for GEB members and below 7% for all other
employees. As an additional performance condition, GEB members forfeit 20% of their award
for each loss-making vear during the vesting period.

Interest payments on DCCP awards are paid at the discretion of UBS. Where interest payments
are not permitted, such as for MRTs, the DCCP award reflects the fair value of the granted non-
interest-bearing award.

The awards are generally forfeitable upon, among other circumstances, voluntary termination of
employment with UBS.
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UBS O'Connor LLC

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

6. Equity Participation and Other Compensation Plans (continued)
Asset Management EQP

In order to align deferred compensation of certain Asset Management employees with the
performance of the investment funds they manage, awards are granted to such employees in the
form of cash-settled notional investment funds. The amount delivered depends on the value of
the underlying investment funds at the time of vesting. The awards are generally forfeitable
upon, among other circumstances, voluntary termination of employment with UBS.

Equity Plus Plan (Equity Plus)

Equity Plus is a voluntary share-based compensation plan that provides eligible employees with
the opportunity to purchase UBS shares at market value and receive one notional share for every
three shares purchased, up to a maximum annual limit. Share purchases may be made annually
from the performance award and/or monthly through deductions from salary. If the shares
purchased are held until three years from the start of the associated plan year and, in general, if
the employee remains employed by UBS, the notional shares vest. Employees are entitled to
receive a dividend equivalent which may be paid in notional shares and/or cash.

The amount of non-vested awards not yet recognized in 2019, was $14,792,358 which is
expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.3 years.

7. Funding Facility

The Company has an uncommitted, unsecured money market funding facility with UBS
Americas Holding Inc. for CHF 20 million. The agreement requires periodic interest payments
on any borrowed amounts. The funding facility has no expiration date. For the year ended
December 31, 2019, the Company did not incur any interest expense related to this funding
facility as no borrowings occurred during the year.

8. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is involved in various regulatory matters arising in the normal course of business.
Management cannot predict with certainty the outcome of pending regulatory matters. While the
outcome of such matters cannot be predicted with certainty, in the opinion of management of the
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UBS O'Connor LLC

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

8. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

Company, any such actions will be resolved with no material adverse effect on the Company’s
financial statements taken as a whole.

9. Subsequent Events

The Company is required by accounting literature (ASC 835, Subseqguent Fvens) to evaluate
whether events occurring after the statement of financial condition date but before the date the
statement of financial condition is available to be issued require accounting as of the statement of
financial condition date or disclosure in the financial statements, The Company has evaluated all
subsequent events through the date the financial statements were available to be issued and
determined that no such events have occurred other than as noted below.

The novel Coronavirus or Covid-19, in China and its subsequent spread worldwide has
significantly increased risk within the global economy and investor uncertainty. In addition,
substantial deterioration in oil prices may have additional effects on the economy and certain
sectors. As a result equity markets have experienced significant declines, market volatility has
substantially increased and some markets have experienced disruptions in orderly function. The
Federal Reserve reduced lending rates.

The outbreak of Covid-19 and the measures being taken globally to reduce the peak of the
resulting pandemic will likely have a significant adverse effect on global economic activity,
including in the United States. An estimate of the financial effect of the economic implications of
Covid-19 is under evaluation.
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2018 12 31

UBS

2018 12 31

15,634,750 1,670,886
37,823,964 4,042,247
335,444 35,849
1,422,107 151,981
55,216,265 5,900,962
17,075,561 1,824,865
16,922,165 1,808,472
33,997,726 3,633,337
21,218,539 2,267,625

55,216,265 5,900,962
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68,882,974 7,361,523

71,989 7,693
40,761 4,356
68,995,724 7,373,573
37,048,289 3,959,351
28,444,568 3,039,871
3,659,181 391,057
1,746,805 186,681
986,145 105,389
761,242 81,354
990,361 105,840
73,636,591 7,869,542

(4,640,867) (495,969)
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4,124,488 440,784

(442,896) (47,332)

431,308 46,094
4,112,900 439,546
25,000,000 2,671,750
(4,640,867) (495,969)
(3,253,494) (347,701)

21,218,539

2,267,625
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(4,640,867) (495,969)
(8,188,357) (875,090)

(16,524) (1,766)

282,743 30,217
(7,049,278) (753, 356)
(6,840,278) (731,021)
(26,452,561) (2,826,985)
25,000,000 2,671,750
(3,253,494) (347,701)
21,746,506 2,324,049
(4,706,055) (502,936)
20,340,805 2,173,822
15,634,750 1,670,886

104,948 11,216
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2018 12 31 2018 12 31
104,948
LIBOR

2019
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UBS O’Connor LLC

Statement of Financial Condition

December 31, 2018

Assets

Cash

Advisory fees receivable
Due from affiliates
Other assets

Total assets

Liahilities and member’s equity
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to affiliates

Total liabilities

Member's equity

Total liabilities and member’s equity

See accompanying noies.
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37,823,964
335444
1,422,107

§ 55216265

5 17,075,561

16,922,165

33,997726
21,218,539
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Statement of Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2018

Revenues
Advisory fees
Interest income
Other income
Total revenues

Expenses

Personnel

Allocated expenses from affiliates
Professional fees

Subadvisory fees to third party
Information technology

Travel and entertainment

Dther

Total expenses

Net loss

See accompanving notes.

UBS O’Connor LLC
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$ 68,382974

71,989
40,761

68,995 724

37,048,289
28,444 568
3,659 181
1,746,805
986,145
761,242
990,361

73,636,591

5 (4,640,867)




UBS O’Connor LLC

Statement of Changes in Member’s Equity

Year Ended December 31, 2018

Member’s equity as of December 31, 2017
Opening balance adjustment (Note 2) due to ASU 2014-09
Opening balance adjustment (Note 2) due to ASU 2016-01
Adjusted member’s equity as of January 1, 2018
Capital contribution from Parent
Net loss
Distribution to UBS, net
Member’s equity as of December 31, 2018

See accompanying notes.
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UBS O’Connor LLC

Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2018

Operating activities
et loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to cash used in
operating activities:
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Advisory fees receivable
Due from affiliates
Other assets
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to affiliates
Net cash used in operating activities

Financing activities

Capital contribution

Distribution to UBS, net

MNet cash provided by financing activities

Net decrease in cash
Cash at beginning of year
Cash at end of vear

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Interest paid on funding line

See accompanying noies.
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(4,640,867)

(8,188,357)
(16,524)
282,743

(7,049,278)

(6,840,278)

(26,452,561)

25,000,000
(3.253.494)

21,746,506

(4,706,055)
20,340,805

15,634,750

$

104,948
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UBS O’Connor LLC

Motes to Financial Statements

Year Ended December 31, 2018

1. Organization and Nature of Business

UBS O'Connor LLC (the Company) is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of UBS Group AG
(UBS or the Parent). The Company is part of the UBS Asset Management business and is an
investment adviser registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission and the
Financial Services Agency in Japan. The Company provides asset management and advisory
services to a series of affiliated altemative investment funds and separately managed accounts
(the Funds). All of the Company’s advisory fees are from the Funds.

2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (LS. GAAP). The preparation of these financial statements requires
management 10 make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from such estimates.

Cash

Cash represents deposits of 512,789,756 held at affiliates of the Company and a deposit of
£2 844 994 held at a non-affiliated bank.

Advisory Fees and Receivables

Advisory fees, including asset-based and performance fees, are recorded as revenue as services
are performed based upon terms of the advisory agreements, Subadvisory fees and distribution
fees between third parties and affiliates of the Company are based on a percentage of net assets
under management and performance. Subadvisory fees and distribution fees between affiliates
are presented net within advisory fees on the statement of operations. Subadvisory fees and
distribution fees to third party are recorded within expenses on the statement of operations.
Subadvisory fees payable and distribution fees between affiliates are presented in due to
affiliates and due from affiliates, respectively, on the statement of financial condition.

Capped fees represent reimbursements from the Funds for costs and expenses borne by the
Company on behalf of the Funds, among other expenses of the Company, and are charged to the
Funds based on the a percentage of net assets under management. Capped fees are included in
advisory fee revenue on the statement of operations, net of any related Fund administration
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UBS O’Connor LLC

MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

expenses. Other Fund related expenses are presented within professional fees on the statement of
operations.

An allowance for doubtful accounts is established, as needed. for those accounts receivable for
which collection is in doubt. No allowance for doubtful accounts has been recorded as of
December 31, 2018.

Income Taxes

The Company is treated as a disregarded entity for U.S. federal, state and local income tax
purposes. As such, the Company does not provide for or pay any U.S. federal or state income
taxes. All income, expense, gain or loss of the Company flows through to the Parent.

Consolidation

U.S. GAAP requires a reporting entity to first assess the consalidation of entities on the basis of
the reporting entity’s ownership of a majority of voting interest. However, in certain situations,
there are no voting rights, or ownership of a majority of voting interest is not a reliable indicator
of control. If voting interests do not exist or if they differ significantly from economic interests
or if holders of the equity investment at risk lack the power to direct activities of the entity, the
obligation to absorb the expected losses of the entity or the right to receive the expected residual
returns of the entity, the entity is considered a Variable Interest Entity (VIE) under Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 810, Consolidation (ASC Topic 810), and control is based
on a qualitative determination of which party has a controlling financial interest in the VIE
(known as the primary beneficiary). See note 3 for additional information.

Foreign Currency Remeasurement

The Company’s functional currency is the U.S. dollar, however, it transacts some business in
currencies other than the U.S. dollar. Assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than
the U.S. dollar are remeasured to U.S. dollars at the prevailing spot rate in effect at year-end.
Revenues and expenses are translated at average rates during the period. Gains or losses resulting
from foreign currency transactions are determined using spot rates on the date of the transaction.
For the year ended December 31, 2018, net foreign currency loss of $55,091 is included in other
expenses on the statement of operations.

168/214



EDINETOOOO
OO00000000000000O(E14951)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

UBS O’Connor LLC

MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Accounting Developments - Adopted in 2018

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards
Update (ASU) 2014-09, Reverme from Contracts with Customers. Subsequently, the FASB has
issued further ASUs for purposes of amending or clanfving that guidance. The ASUs establish
principles for revenue recognition that apply to all contracts with customers except those
relating to financial instruments, leases, and insurance contracts and require an entity to
recognize revenue as performance obligations are satisfied. In particular, the standard now
specifies that vaniable consideration is only recognized to the extent that it is highly probable
that a significant reversal will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the vanable
consideration is subsequently resolved. This may affect when certain performance-based and
asset based fees can be recognized. It also provides guidance on when revenues and expenses
should be presented on a gross or net basis and establishes a cohesive set of disclosure
requirements for information on the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and
cash flows from contracts with customers.

The Company adopted the standard as of its mandatory effective date on January 1, 2018, and
applied it on a modified retrospective basis, recognizing the cumulative effect of initially
applying the standard as an adjustment decreasing the opening balance of member's equity in
the amount of $442 896, and a corresponding decrease in advisory fees receivable. There were
changes in the timing and presentation of certain fee income and expense based on the guidance
provided by the standard.

The below table includes revenues which are impacted by ASC Topic 606, Revenue from

Comtracts with Customers (ASC 606), and it includes only those contracts with customers that
are in scope of ASC Topic 606.
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UBS O’Connor LLC

MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Disaggregation of Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Advisory fees from the Funds S 90,978 404
Capped fees from the Funds 27.365,870
Distribution fees from affiliates 840,476
Distribution fees to affiliates (24,648,176)
Subadvisory fees to affiliates (21,962,365)
Fund administration fees (3.691,235)
Total S 6B.8E2974

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01, Recognition and Measurement of Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities (ASU 2016-01). In February 2018, the FASB issued ASU No,
2018-03, Technical Corrections and Improvements to Financial Instruments-Overall (subtopic
825-10), to clanify certain provisions in ASU 2016-01. The ASUs address certain aspects of
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of financial instruments and primarily
affects the accounting for financial assets and liabilities under the fair value option and the
presentation and disclosure requirements for financial instruments. The Company adopted both of
the ASUs as of January 1, 2018 and in line with transitional provisions, recognized the cumulative
effect of initially applying the standards as an adjustment increasing the opening balance of
member’s equity in the amount of $431,308, and a corresponding increase in other assets. For the
year ended December 31, 2018, the Company recognized $40,761 of income from fair value
measurement which is included in other income on the statement of operations.

In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-07, Compensation—=Retirement Benefits (Topic
713): Improving the Presentation of Net Periodic Pension Cost and Net Periodic Postretirement
Benefir Cost (ASU 2017-07). ASU 2017-07 requires that an employer disaggregate the service
cost component from other components of net benefit costs. The service cost component of net
pertodic pension and postretirement benefit cost should be reported in the same financial
statement line item(s) as other current emplovee compensation costs arising from services
rendered by emplovees. All other components of net benefit cost must be presented separately in
the income statement from the service cost component, and outside any subtotal of operating
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UBS O’Connor LLC

MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

income. The Company adopted the standard as of its mandatory effective date on January 1,
2018. This change in presentation did not have a matenial effect on the statement of operations.

In May 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-09, Receivables—Compensation—=Stock
Compensation (Subtopic 718): Scope of Modification Accommting (ASU 2017-09), which amends
the accounting for modifications of share-based payment awards. ASU 2017-09 requires that
maodification accounting be applied when a change to the terms or conditions of an award is
substantive. The Company adopted the standard as of its mandatory effective date on January 1,
2018. Adoption did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

3. Sponsored Hedge Fund Entities

The Company is the investment manager of certain hedge fund entities. The purpose of these
funds is to provide strategy specific investment opportunities for investors in exchange for
management fees and performance based fees. The investment strategies of the funds differ by
product; however, the fundamental risks of the funds have similar characteristics, including loss
of invested capital and loss of management fees and performance based fees. In the Company’s
role as tax matter partner or investment adviser, it generally considers itself the sponsor of the
applicable fund. Certain of the funds may be deemed to be VIEs. The Company's variable
interests in such VIEs predominantly include insignificant equity interests. The Company does
not provide performance guarantees and has no other financial obligation to provide funding to
any VIEs other than its own capital commitments. As of December 31, 2018, the Company did
not have any material VIEs that had to be consolidated.

4. Related-Party Transactions

On December 18, 2018, the Company received capital contribution of $25,000,000 from the
Parent. The recapitalization will permit the Company to have a positive equity position of at least
£1 million to comply with the Qualified Professional Asset Manager (QPAM) requirements.

The Company allocates a portion of its advisory fee revenue to UBS O'Connor Limited
(a UK. company), UBS Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited (a Hong Kong company) and
UBS Asset Management (Singapore) Ltd (a Singapore company) for certain funds under
subadvisory agreements. These subadvisory fees, totaling $21,962365 for the vear ended
December 31, 2018, are netted in advisory fees on the statement of operations. UBS O’ Connor
Limited, UBS Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited and UBS Asset Management
(Singapore) Ltd are affiliates of the Company.
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UBS O’Connor LLC

MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)

4. Related-Party Transactions (continued)

As of December 31, 2018, 54,618,338 of subadvisory fees payable to UBS O’Connor Limited,
$157.231 of subadvisory fees pavable to UBS Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited and
$376.598 of subadvisory fees pavable to UBS Asset Management (Singapore) Ltd are included
in due to affiliates on the statement of financial condition.

Allocated expenses relate to costs allocated to the Company by affiliates. Allocated expenses
relate to overhead, occupancy, information technology, benefits, marketing and other
compensation plan costs charged to the Company by affiliates that provide such services and
support. In addition. the Company reimburses affiliates for amounts paid on behalf of the
Company. For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company incurred $26,774 883 in
allocated expenses from affiliates, excluding occupancy expenses. As of December 31, 2018,
$6,347.242 of such expenses is included in due to affiliates on the statement of financial
condition.

The Company occupies office space in several locations leased by other UBS affiliates under
external lease commitments. The Company reimburses those affiliates for their lease expenses.
For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company incurred $1,669.685 in occupancy
expenses allocated from affiliates.

The Company has paid certain distribution fees to affiliates of UBS. Such distribution fees are
recorded net within advisory fees on the statement of operations. For the year ended
December 31, 2018, the Company incurred $24,648,176 in distribution fees to affiliates. As of
December 31, 2018, $5,422,756 of distnbution fees payable to affiliates is included in due to
affiliates on the statement of financial condition.

The Company has entered into an Investment Management agreement with UBS Asset
Management (Canada) Inc. to permit certain Canadian funds and investors to invest into a
Company-advised fund. Fees earned for the year ended December 31, 2018 under this agreement
of $828,397 are included in advisory fees on the statement of operations. As of December 31,
2018, fees receivable of $335,444 is included in due from affiliates on the statement of financial
condition,

172/214



EDINETOOOO
OO00000000000000O(E14951)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

UBS O*Connor LLC

MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)

5. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company participates with affiliates in a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan
sponsored by the Parent that provides retirement benefits to eligible employees.

Effective December 2, 2001, the defined benefit pension plan was closed to new employees, and
new employvees were automatically enrolled into the new retirement contribution feature of the
defined contribution 401(k) plan and began earning retirement contributions beginning
JTanuary 1, 2002 In addition, existing emplovees as of December 1, 2001, made an election either
to participate in the new retirement contribution feature of the defined contribution 401(k) plan
as of January 1, 2002, or to remain in the defined benefit pension plan.

The Company also participates in a Parent sponsored postretirement medical and dental plan.
Retiree medical and dental premiums are subsidized for eligible employees who retired prior to
January 1, 2014. Effective January 1, 2017, retirees who retired between and including January
I, 1999 and December 31, 2013, will be required to pay the full cost for dental coverage. Eligible
employees who retired on or after January 1, 2014 pay the full cost of medical and dental
coverage. With respect to the postretirement medical plan, the Parent's policy is to fund benefits
on a pay-as-you-go basis. From January 1, 2019, these participants who are age 65 or older, or
certain employees who are pre-65 and Medicare eligible, will receive an annual notional
contribution to a Health Savings Account which they can use to purchase medical insurance and
pay for eligible medical related expenses.

The Company incurred expenses of $177,338 related to the aforementioned benefit plans for the
year ended December 31, 2018, which are included in personnel expense on the statement of
operations.

The Company also participates in a defined contribution 401(k) plan of the Parent that provides
retirement benefits to eligible employees. Under the defined contribution 401(k) plan,
participants may contribute a portion of their eligible compensation on a pre-tax basis, and on a
Roth 401(k) and afier-tax basis, with the Company matching some portion of those
contributions, subject to certain limitations prescribed by the Internal Revenue Code. The
Company’s matching contributions to each participant will be limited to an annual amount of
$5,750 effective from January 1, 2019, The limit was increased from 4,500 in 2018, Eligible
participants may also receive a retirement contribution (as discussed below) under the defined
contribution plan. A participant is 100% wvested in the Company's retirement and matching
contribution plus earnings thereon after the earlier of three years of service, attaining age 65
while still an employee, becoming totally and permanently disabled or upon death.
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UBS O*Connor LLC

MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)

5. Employee Benefit Plans (continued)

Generally, to receive a retirement contribution and/or retain the Company’s matching
contributions for the year, a participant must be an active employee on the last business day of
that year. The Company made a matching contnbution of $228,729 to this plan during the year,
which is included in personnel expense on the statement of operations. The retirement
contribution is equal to 1.5% to 3.5% of eligible compensation depending on a participant’s date
of employment, subject to certain limitations prescribed by the Internal Revenue Code.

6. Equity Participation and Other Compensation Plans

The Parent operates several equity participation and other compensation plans to align the
interests of Group Executive Board (GEB) members, Key Risk Takers and other employees with
the interests of investors while continuously meeting regulatory requirements. The Parent
operates compensation plans on a mandatory, discretionary and voluntary basis.

Equity Ownership Plan (EOP)

Certain emplovees receive a portion of their annual performance-related compensation above a
certain threshold in the form of EOP notional shares or EOP performance shares (i.e. notional
shares which are subject to performance conditions).

Notional shares represent a promise to receive UBS shares at vesting and do not carry voting
rights during the vesting period. Notional shares granted before February 2014 have no rights to
dividends, whereas awards granted since February 2014 carry a dividend equivalent which may
be paid in notional shares or cash and which vests on the same terms and conditions as the
awards. However, awards that have been granted to Material Risk Takers (MRTs) since February
2018 for the performance year 2017 do not carry such a dividend equivalent to comply with
regulatory requirements.

For employees other than GEB members, EOP awards generally vest in equal installments in
years two and three. The plan includes provisions that enable the firm to trigger forfeiture of
some, or all, of any unvested award or portion of an award (a) if an employee commits certain
harmful acts and (b) in most cases of terminated employment. EOP expense is recognized in the
performance year if the employee meets the retirement eligibility requirements at the date of
grant. Otherwise, the expense of each vesting portion of deferred compensation is recognized
from the grant date to the earlier of the vesting date or the retirement eligibility date of the
employee, on a straight line basis. All EOP expenses recognized is subject to an expected
forfeiture rate, which was 6.17% at December 31, 2018,
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UBS O*Connor LLC

MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)

6. Equity Participation and Other Compensation Plans (continued)

Key Risk Takers (globally defined as those employees who, by the nature of their role, have been
determined to materially set, commit or control significant amounts of the firm’s resources and /
or exert significant influence over its nsk profile), Group Managing Directors or employees
whose total compensation exceeds a certain threshold, receive performance shares under EOP.
These performance shares only vest in full if certain performance requirements are met. Such
performance requirements are currently based on UBS Group's adjusted return on tangible equity
and the divisional return on attributed equity over the defined financial years during vesting.

Certain awards, such as replacement awards, may take the form of deferred cash under the EOP
rules.

Deferrved Contingent Capital Plan (DCCP)

Similar to EOP awards, certain employees receive a portion of their annual performance-related
compensation above a certain threshold in the form of a notional additional tier 1 (AT1) capital
instrument.

DCCP awards vest in full five years from grant and are forfeited if UBS's common equity tier 1
(CET1) capital ratio falls below 7% (for employees other than the Group Executive Board). In
addition, awards are also forfeited if a viability event occurs (that is, if the Swiss Financial
Market Supervisory Authority (“FINMA”™) provides a written notice to UBS that the DCCP
awards must be written down to prevent an insolvency. bankruptcy or failure of UBS, or if UBS
receives a commitment of extraordinary support from the public sector that is necessary to
prevent such an event). Under the DCCP, employees may receive discretionary annual interest
payments, However, no interest is paid on awards that have been granted to MRTs since
February 2018 for the performance year 2017 to comply with regulatory requirements.

Provisions for forfeiture of awarded DCCP and recognition of associated expense are the same as
with EOP,

Voluntary share-based compensation plans
Eguity Plus Plan (Equity Plus)

Equity Plus is a voluntary plan that provides eligible employees with the opportunity to purchase
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UBS O'Connor LLC

MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)

6. Equity Participation and Other Compensation Plans (continued)

UBS Group AG shares at market value and receive, at no additional cost, one notional UBS
Group AG share for every three shares purchased, up to a maximum annual limit. Share
purchases may be made annually from the performance award and / or monthly through
deductions from salary. If the shares purchased are held for maximum three years and in general
if the employee remains in employment, the notional shares vest. For notional shares granted
since April 2014, employees are entitled to receive a dividend equivalent which may be paid in
either notional shares and / or cash.

The amount of non-vested awards not vet recognized in 2018, was $15291,346 which is
expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2 years.

7. Funding Facility

The Company has an uncommitted, unsecured money market funding facility with UBS
Americas Inc. for CHF 20 million. The agreement requires periodic interest payments on any
borrowed amounts. The funding facility has no expiration date. There were no borrowings
outstanding as of December 31, 2018. For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company
incurred and paid $104,948 of interest related to this funding facility, which is included in other
expenses on the statement of operations. The interest rate charged is based upon an internal rate
derived using one-month LIBOR.

8. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is involved in various regulatory matters arising in the normal course of business.
Management cannot predict with certainty the outcome of pending regulatory matters. While the
outcome of such matters cannot be predicted with certainty, in the opinion of management of the
Company, any such actions will be resolved with no material adverse effect on the Company’s
financial statements taken as a whole.

9. Subsequent Events
Management has evaluated subsequent events through June 7, 2019, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued. Management has determined that there are no material

events or transactions that would affect the Company’s financial statements or require disclosure
in the Company’s financial statements through this date.
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Report of Independent Auditors
The Trustee

Nikko Global CB Fund

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Nikko Global CB Fund which comprise the statement
of assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2019, and the related statements of operations, changes in net assets
and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free of material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’ s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
materia misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financia statements referred to above present fairly, in all materia respects, the financial
position of Nikko Global CB Fund at December 31, 2019, and the results of its operations, changes in its net
assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Ernst & Young Ltd.
Cayman Islands
March 31, 2020
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Report of Independent Auditors

The Member
UBS O’ Connor LLC

We have audited the accompanying financia statements of UBS O’ Connor LLC, which comprise the statement of
financial condition as of December 31, 2019, and the related statements of operations, changes in member's
equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free of material
mi sstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsihility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financia statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of UBS O’ Connor LLC at December 31, 2019, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
year then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Ernst & Young LLP
May 29, 2020
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Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors
Nikko Global CB Fund

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Nikko Global CB Fund which comprise the statement
of assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2018, and the related statements of operations, changes in net assets
and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financia statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free of material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financia statements referred to above present fairly, in all materia respects, the financial
position of Nikko Global CB Fund at December 31, 2018, and the results of its operations, changes in its net
assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Ernst & Young Ltd.
Cayman Idlands
April 16, 2019
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Report of Independent Auditors
The Member

UBS O’ Connor LLC

We have audited the accompanying financia statements of UBS O’ Connor LLC, which comprise the statement of
financial condition as of December 31, 2018, and the related statements of operations, changes in member's
equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free of material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financia statements referred to above present fairly, in all materia respects, the financia
position of UBS O’ Connor LLC at December 31, 2018, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
year then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Ernst & Young LLP
June 7, 2019
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